/m AGENDA
M E R I D l A N CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
MERIDIAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
OWNSHIPata/

\T\_/A June 27,2019
\J"E\

e COMMUNITY CONVERSATION - 2019 Local Street Bond 6:00 p.m.
Town Hall Room - Municipal Building

e TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION MEETING 7:00 p.m.
Town Hall Room - Municipal Building

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. May 23,2019

4. PUBLIC REMARKS

5. COMMUNICATIONS
A. Received and on file

= Donna Rose - Public transit and people with disabilities

6. COMMISSION DISCUSSION
A. Update on Okemos Road bridge replacement
B. Review / Recap of Community Conversation Meeting
C. Review of material from CATA

7. COMMISSION COMMENTS

8. NEXT MEETING DATES
A. August 22, 2019 Central Fire Station Community Room
B. Township Board Meeting July 9, 2019

9. ADJOURNMENT

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Township Manager Frank L. Walsh 5151 Marsh Road,

Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required. . R

Meeting Location: 5000 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 Central Fire St. A PRIVME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe, welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



DRAFT

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
MERIDIAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (MTC)
MEETING MINUTES OF MAY 23,2019

PRESENT: Chair Hackbarth, Vice-Chair Vagnozzi, Commissioners Deschaine and Hudson.

ABSENT: Commissioner Potter, Lovell and Kolbasa.

STAFF: Frank Walsh, Township Manager, Jerry Richards, Planning Commission

Representative and Mark Kieselbach, Director of Community Planning and Development.

1. Call Meeting to Order
Chair Hackbarth called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.

2. Approval of Agenda

Commissioner Deschaine moved to approve the agenda.
Seconded by Vice-Chair Vagnozzi

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

3. Approval of Minutes

Commissioner Deschaine moved to approve the minutes of March 21, 2019 as written.
Seconded by Vice-Chair Vagnozzi.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

4. Public Remarks
None

5. Communications
None

6. Commission Discussion
A. Capital Area Transportation Authority (CATA) Update

Chair Hackbarth welcomed Andrew Brieschke, Deputy CEO, CATA.

Mr. Brieschke provided the Commission with a packet of information on Redi-Ride service in the
Township for August 27, 2018 to April 30, 2019. The information included passenger type, booking
analysis, extended hours ridership and student ridership. (A copy of the information is on file.)

e Persons with disabilities make up the largest percentage of users.

e Small increase in Senior ridership and a small decrease in Youth ridership between April
2018 to April 2019.

e Total trips booked were 18,031.



MTC Minutes DRAFT
May 23, 2019

Page 2

Canceled rides were the highest for the January time period. Believed due to weather.
Less than 8 percent for no shows is positive.
For extended hours Monday-Friday ridership is the highest in the morning.
Total trips taken between 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. was 1,192 vs 507 trips taken between 5:00
p.m. to 6:30 p.m.
In the morning 598 trips were taken by students
Possible change to the service is to start earlier in the morning
Change to phone system to allow for call back feature instead of person waiting on hold
Working on new bus shelter design
New technology for real time dispatch, booking and location
In 2019 15 small buses and 23 large buses will be purchased
The Commission requested CATA to provide information on the following items:
o Total number of Redi-Ride trips from 2:00-3:00 p.m. and 3:00-4:00 p.m. by rider
type
o Ridership data for August 2018-April 2019 at the five extended locations
Ridership data for each school
o Information showing rider type Monday-Friday for 7:30-9:00 a.m., 2:00-4:00 p.m.
and 5:00-6:30 p.m. from August 2018-April 2019
o Comparison of rider type and number of rides Meridian vs Delhi for 7:00-9:00 a.m.
from August 2018-April 2019
o Interestin starting service at 6:30 a.m. and ending service at 6:00 p.m.
o Ridership for fixed routes in the Township
o Busiest bus stops for fixed routes in the Township

B. Redi-Ride Millage Renewal

Township Board on May 9, 2019 approved the ballot language to renew the Redi-Ride
millage at 0.1983 mill for 5 years, 2020 through 2024. (A copy of the resolution is on file.)

C. Redi-Ride Service Agreement

Township Board on May 9, 2019 authorized the Township Supervisor and Township
Manager to sign the Service Agreement with CATA. The CATA Board of Directors on May
15, 2019 authorized signing the Service Agreement. (A copy of the signed Service
Agreement is on file.)

D. Street Improvement Bond Proposal

Township Board on May 9, 2019 approved ballot language to borrow the principal amount
not to exceed $35,250,000 and issue bonds to finance the acquisition and construction of
local street improvement projects. (A copy of the resolution is on file.) The Township



MTC Minutes DRAFT
May 23, 2019
Page 3

Board also approved at its meeting on May 21, 2019 not to levy the current .2479 Road
Millage from 2020-2023 if the road bond was approved by the voters on August 6, 2019.

7. Commission Comments
None

8. Next Meeting Dates
Transportation Commission’s next meeting is June 27, 2019 at the Central Fire Station Community

Room. Township Board’s next meeting is June 4, 2019.

9. Adjournment

Chair Hackbarth called for a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Commissioner Deschaine moved to adjourn the meeting.
Seconded by Vice-Chair Vagnozzi

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

Meeting adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m.




Mark Kieselbach

e B
From: Donna Rose <wild-rose@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Saturday, June 08, 2019 4:41 PM
To: Mark Kieselbach
Cc: Board; Frank Walsh
Subject: For Transit Comm. Members

Greetings,

Below is a link to a very good article published in 2017 with the results of a moderately sized survey regarding public
transit and people with disabilities which was paid for by the FTA, among others. It outlines many factors which can
make transit difficult for this population and offers some solutions. | hope you will take a moment to read this so you
can be better informed about the transit needs of people with disabilities, and you don't have to rely on the honest
experience and perceptions of just a few individuals. | guess that was a problem for most Commissioners regarding Redi
Ride. | wish | had seen this to pass along to you sooner. | do believe you should have trusted those who are riders and
had concerns, but this offers some qualitative and quantitative results which you might like better.

https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/full/10.1177/1044207317702070

Thanks,

Donna Rose

6207 Cobblers Dr.

East Lansing, M1 48823



‘M) Check for updates

H Hammi insTiTuTE
ON DISABILITIES

Article

Journal of Disability Policy Studies

2017, Vol. 28(1) 52-60

© Hammill Institute on Disabilities 2017
Reprints and permissions:
sagepub.com/journalsPermissions.nav
DOI: 10.1177/1044207317702070
jdps.sagepub.com

©SAGE

Public Transportation: An Investigation
of Barriers for People With Disabilities

Jill L. Bezyak, PhD, CRC', Scott A. Sabella, PhD, CRC?,
and Robert H. Gattis, MS®

Abstract

The physical accessibility of public transportation increased nationwide following the passage of the Americans With
Disabilities Act (ADA) in 1990. Despite removal of many physical barriers within fixed-route systems, significant barriers
to overall access of public transportation systems are still widespread. The purpose of the current study was to provide
a full description of barriers experienced by individuals with disabilities when using the public transportation and the
complementary paratransit services. An online survey was developed and disseminated to contacts of the National
Network of ADA Centers, and 4,161 individuals responded. Results highlight significant barriers for people with disabilities
who use public transportation and complementary paratransit services. Barriers to these transit systems are physical and
attitudinal in nature, and as a result, modifications to the physical environment and educational opportunities to reduce

negative attitudes toward individuals with disabilities are recommended.

Keywords
public transportation, accessibility, barriers, disability

Transportation is essential for people of all ages and back-
grounds to live a fulfilling and satisfying life. It plays a vital role
in many aspects of daily life including access to employment,
education, health care, shopping, social occasions, and multiple
recreational activities. Put simply, transportation is a require-
ment for full participation in a community (Jansuwan,
Christensen, & Chen, 2013). Despite the obvious importance,
many people in the United States do not have access to adequate
transportation, and this experience is disproportionate for some
groups. Individuals with disabilities represent approximately
40% of the 15 million people in the United States who have dif-
ficulty getting adequate transportation services (U.S. Department
of Transportation & Bureau of Transportation Statistics, 2003).
According to the U.S. Census Bureau (2011), approxi-
mately 36.3 million Americans experience one or more dis-
abilities, which is equivalent to one out of every eight
Americans. Further research indicates 30% of individuals
with disabilities have difficulty accessing transportation
(U.S. General Accounting Office, 2003). In addition, people
with disabilities travel less frequently and rely on public
transportation more than the general population (Penfold,
Cleghorn, Creegan, Neil, & Webster, 2008). As a result, bar-
riers to public transportation quickly affect the ability of peo-
ple with disabilities to fully experience the social, economic,
and political environments of their community (Christensen,
2014). It is estimated that 560,000 people do not even leave
home as a result of transportation difficulties (U.S.
Department of Transportation & Bureau of Transportation

Statistics, 2003). Adequate, accessible public transportation
is essential to fully address social and economic disparities
that exist among individuals with disabilities (National
Council on Disability [NCD], 2005a). By increasing inde-
pendence, transportation can serve to mediate these inequali-
ties based upon impairment and subsequently experienced as
disability (Aldred & Woodcock, 2008).

Barriers to Public Transportation

Public transportation has increased physical accessibility
nationwide following the passage of the Americans With
Disabilities Act (ADA) in 1990. The ADA clearly changed
the landscape of public transit, and the NCD indicated,

As a consistent theme in most transit systems across the United
States, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) has
spawned great improvements . . . As a result of the ADA, the
past decade has brought about real improvements in access to
transportation for people with disabilities, and access to public
transportation has improved significantly since implementation

'"University of Northern Colorado, Greeley, USA
XUniversity at Buffalo, NY, USA
IMeeting the Challenge, Inc., Colorado Springs, CO, USA

Corresponding Author:

Jill L. Bezyak, Human Rehabilitative Services Program, University of
Northern Colorado, Campus Box 132, Greeley, CO 80639, USA.
Email: jill.bezyak@unco.edu



Bezyak et al.

53

of the ADA transportation provisions. (NCD, 2005a, pp. 13,
20)

Despite removal of many physical barriers within fixed-
route systems, significant barriers to overall access to pub-
lic transit systems are still being reported. Barriers to public
transportation for people with disabilities are widespread,
but documentation in many parts of the country are lacking.
A recent report from NCD (2015) provides information
from select cities regarding problems and barriers to public
transportation for people with disabilities. Problems with
fixed-route bus transportation include inoperable lifts and
ramps, false claims of inoperable lifts or ramps to avoid
boarding a person with a disability, failure to stop for a trav-
eler with a disability, attitudinal barriers among drivers,
steep slope for ramp use, failure to clear wheelchair secure-
ment zones for people with disabilities, failure to provide
stop announcements, and failure to provide route identifica-
tion. Problems also exist with fixed-route rail systems
including failure to provide level-entry boarding at new or
altered stations, lack of an accessible alternative when
level-entry boarding is not possible, inaccessible stations
and cars, problems with reservations, and failure to provide
dual-mode communication in the station or on the track
(NCD, 2015). Without an improved understanding of these
problems, along with policies to remove barriers such as
those stated above, individuals with disabilities continue to
lack full access to public transportation.

Barriers to Complementary
Paratransit

In addition to the requirements of public transit systems
described above, the ADA also requires public transit sys-
tems to provide complementary paratransit, which are
demand-responsive transportation services for people who
are unable to board a bus, or do not have an accessible path
to a transit stop. Complementary paratransit services must
be provided to eligible users within three fourths of a mile
corridor of existing bus routes and during the same hours of
service of those bus routes. In addition, transit providers
cannot impose restrictions on the type of trip taken, and eli-
gible riders cannot be refused service due to budget restric-
tions, despite the potentially high cost of complementary
paratransit for public transit systems. Initially, complemen-
tary paratransit services were intended to provide transporta-
tion services to people with disabilities while transit systems
became more accessible; however, many people with dis-
abilities now use complementary paratransit services as their
primary mode of transportation (Rosenbloom, 2007).
Complementary paratransit services are a lifeline for
many individuals with disabilities, but despite the importance
of these services, barriers are frequently encountered, which
prevent individuals from having necessary transportation to

meet daily needs. Reports from cities such as Orlando,
Florida, indicate travelers often experience untimely pickups,
excessive trip lengths, and missed trips (NCD, 2015).
Additional barriers include problems with eligibility for para-
transit services, denials of requests for paratransit services by
eligible individuals, excessive hold times to arrange trips
over the phone, lack of communication accessibility when
arranging trips by phone, lack of door-to-door service when
necessary, attitudinal barriers among drivers, and a lack of
driver training (NCD, 2015). Problems such as these prevent
individuals with disabilities, who are eligible for paratransit,
from obtaining adequate and necessary transportation for a
variety of needs.

Despite passage of the ADA in 1990, which led to sig-
nificant improvements in public transportation for people
with disabilities, problems and barriers to public transporta-
tion and complementary paratransit services still exist with
documentation from select cities across the nation
(Rosenbloom, 2007). To adequately address the barriers
encountered by individuals with disabilities in public transit
and complementary paratransit systems, a closer look at
these problems is essential. The purpose of the current study
is to use a national sample of individuals with disabilities to
provide a full description of barriers experienced when
using the public transportation and the paratransit services
to inform and influence transportation reform at the regional
and national levels.

Method

Participants

The initial sample for the current study consisted of 6,884
participants who responded to the email invitation for the
web-based survey. Due to focus of the current study, the
initial sample size was reduced to only include individuals
with disabilities who reported using public transportation. A
total of 4,161 respondents met these criteria and were
included in the sample for the current study. The mean age
of participants was 49 years (SD = 15 years). Additional
demographic information of respondents is presented in the
following section.

Instrumentation

A web-based survey containing 33 questions was created by
staff and advisory committee members at Meeting the
Challenge under a Federal Transit Administration coopera-
tive agreement (Project CO268001). The survey tool used
for administration was Survey Gizmo (Widgix LLC, 2009),
and specific questions were created following an extensive
review of the literature of similar assessment tools and cur-
rent barriers in accessibility of public transportation
(Denson, 2015; NCD, 2005b; Rogers, 2002; Transit



54

Journal of Disability Policy Studies 28(1)

Cooperative Research Program, 2005). The resulting sur-
vey was a branched instrument, which directed participants
to different questions dependent on their use of public tran-
sit systems and complementary paratransit within the past
12 months. Of the 33 questions, 29 were multiple choice
and four were open ended. The survey included four sec-
tions with items investigating use of public transportation,
use of complementary paratransit services, perceptions of
transportation accessibility, and demographic items. It was
operational from March 11 through March 31, 2009, which
indicates a rapid rate of response by all participants.

Procedure

The web-based survey was disseminated to participants
using the National Network of ADA Centers. The ADA
Centers are a national network of 10 regional centers that
provide information, referrals, resources, and training on
the ADA to businesses, employers, government entities,
media and news reporters, and individuals with disabilities.
Meeting the Challenge operates one of the 10 regional cen-
ters, the Rocky Mountain ADA Center. Using this network
allowed distribution of the survey to extend nationwide in
an effort to collect data reflective of the state of transit for
people with disabilities across the country. Each regional
ADA Center distributed the survey invitation email to com-
munity groups including disability, transit, advocacy orga-
nizations, and service providers as well as to individuals
with disabilities. Email recipients were encouraged to for-
ward survey information to any individual with a disability
or to any groups serving individuals with disabilities with
interest in public transit accessibility issues.

Data Analysis

The SPSS version 21.0 for Windows was used to perform
all data analyses. Descriptive statistics were computed for
all items, including measures of distribution, central ten-
dency, and variation where applicable. In addition, Pearson’s
chi-square analyses were conducted to investigate differ-
ences between expected and observed results, and all sig-
nificant tests utilized an alpha threshold of .01.

Results

As previously indicated, a total of 4,161 individuals
responded to the branched survey, which asked participants
to respond to different questions based on their use of pub-
lic transportation and paratransit services, and 92% of
respondents completed the survey. Demographic informa-
tion was collected from all participants as part of the current
study. Specific information regarding gender, disability sta-
tus, employment, education, and city size are presented in
Table 1.

Table 1. Demographic Information of Respondents.

Characteristic % n
Gender
Male 40.8 1,696
Female 59.2 2,463

Not answered
Disability status

Mobility disability 42.5 1,769
Blind/low vision 320 1,333
Deaf/hard of hearing 12.3 512
Communication disability 1.7 488
Mental health disability 25.6 1,066
Other - 194 806
Employment status
Full time 28.2 1,174
Part time 194 808
Self-employed 52 217
Student 13.0 542
Volunteer 17.0 709
Unemployed 13.5 563
Retired 10.9 453
Education
Bachelor’s degree 21.1 878
Graduate degree 21.7 902
Associate’s degree 7.5 310
Some college 17.5 727
High school diploma 16.0 664
City size
<50,000 20.9 869
50,000-100,000 14.8 614
101,000-250,000 10.4 431
250,001-1,000,000 1.8 493
1,000,000+ 1.0 459

Public Transportation

Initial results provide a description of the type of use of
public transportation by individuals with disabilities. In the
past year, 36.7% of respondents indicated they rely on pub-
lic transportation, whereas 20.1% reported frequent use,
17.9% occasional use, and 15.6% indicated rare use. The
most common form of public transportation utilized by
respondents was the bus (74.0%), followed by paratransit
services (35.6%)), taxis (28.9%), light rail (21.2%), and sub-
ways (19.5%).

More important, the current survey provided detailed
information regarding barriers encountered by individuals
with disabilities when using public transportation. Table 2
depicts the frequency of barriers cited by all respondents
when using public transportation in the previous 12 months
to the administration of the survey, in descending order.

Further analysis uncovered significant differences in the
experience of barriers in public transportation according to
type of disability. When compared with other disability



Bezyak et al. 55
Table 2. Public Transportation Barriers Encountered by Disability Type (N = 4,161).

Type of barrier All Vision Hearing Communication Mobility Mental/learn
Inadequate transit system 47.9% (1,994) 58.9%* 44.1% 45.7% 47.9% 47.3%
Drivers not calling out stops 30.2% (1,257) 53.1%* 33.0% 20.5% 22.3% 21.4%
Inappropriate driver attitude 26.7% (1,111) 31.8%* 29.3% 27.0% 29.9%%* 23.6%
No accessible route to stop/station 26.0% (1,080) 31.4%* 23.2% 24.6% 29.6%* 23.6%
Climate conditions 25.2% (1,050) 25.1% 24.0% 26.6% 34.8%* 24.2%
Drivers lack of knowledge 23.0% (957) 31.4%* 21.5% 24.4% 25.9%* 17.5%
Inability to navigate public system 20.1% (838) 22.1% 22.5% 27.7%* 19.0% 25.9%%*
Inaccessible stop/station 19.8% (825) 20.0% 17.8% 17.8% 26.9%* 15.7%
Gap or step to vehicle 18.9% (788) 21.2% 18.0% 13.3% 28.8%* 14.3%
Problems with lifts 17.2% (717) 8.8% 13.3% 18.2% 34.0%* I1.1%
Vehicle full 14.7% (612) I1.1% 18.0% 16.4% 23.1%* 13.8%
Drivers refuse to stop 14.1% (588) 18.5%* 12.9% 9.0% 13.9% 13.6%
Not eligible for paratransit 8.1% (337) 7.3% 7.6% 12.3%* 9.2% 10.5%*
Unable to secure wheelchair 7.6% (315) 3.8% 6.1% 11.3%* 15.4%* 5.0%
Service animal problems 5.6% (232) 10.2%* 9.2%* 4.5% 5.5% 3.7%
Wheelchair is too big/heavy 3.3% (138) 2.4% 3.3% 4.1% 6.6%* 2.5%
No barriers 12.1% (502) 8.4% 10.2% 16.2% 9.3% 16.8%

Note. Percentage for all disability types equals the proportion of respondents who encountered this barrier in the past 12 months; respondents could
check multiple responses if more than one barrier was encountered. For each disability type, indicated significance denotes higher percentages in the

experience of that barrier when compared with other disability types.
*,
b <.0l.

types using chi-square tests of independence, individuals
who are blind or have low vision reported significantly ele-
vated rates of certain barriers. Individuals who are deaf or
hard of hearing reported similar rates of barriers when com-
pared with other disabilities, with the exception of increased
reports of problems with service animals compared with
those with other types of disabilities. Individuals with com-
munication disabilities reported elevated rates of wheel-
chair securement issues, ineligibility for paratransit services,
and inability to navigate public transit systems. Respondents
with mobility disabilities showed significantly higher rates
of most barriers to public transportation, whereas partici-
pants with mental health disabilities reported slightly lower
rates of most barriers with the exception of significantly
higher rates in the inability to navigate the public transit
system and not being eligible for paratransit. Table 2 pro-
vides a comprehensive review of all the barriers to public
transportation according to disability type.

Results also indicated additional differences between
urban and rural public transportation as defined by the 2010
Census classification of “urbanized areas,” an area of
50,000 or more people (U.S. Census Bureau, n.d.).
Urbanized areas had significantly elevated rates of drivers
not calling out stops (34.5% vs. 25.1%), x°(1) = 24.57, p <
.01; vehicles being too full or wheelchair areas occupied
(16.7% vs. 11.3%), x*(1) = 14.04, p < .01; drivers lacking
knowledge (25.9% vs. 16.9%), x*(1) = 27.67, p < .01; and
inappropriate driver attitude (28.2% vs. 20.4%), x*(1) =
19.59, p < .01, whereas nonurbanized (rural) areas had

significantly higher rates of not being eligible for paratran-
sit services (11.3% vs. 7.1%), y*(1) = 14.09, p < .01.

Complementary Paratransit Services

In addition to barriers to public transportation services, the
current study also investigated barriers to paratransit ser-
vices. Of the initial sample for the current study, 36.1% of
the participants reported utilizing complementary paratran-
sit services in the last 12 months, and as a result, 1,503
serves as the sample size for this section. Initial results indi-
cate 65.6% of these respondents use paratransit services
more than once a month, and 31.6% use it more than two
times a week. Respondents also report using paratransit ser-
vices for general access to the community (51.6%), comple-
tion of important daily activities (i.e., medical appointments;
48.8%), and transportation to work (36.3%), whereas 13.7%
of respondents report paratransit services as their exclusive
form of transportation.

Similar to public transportation services, a large majority
of respondents reported some type of barrier to the use of
paratransit services. Table 3 provides a description of spe-
cific barriers and related frequency as experienced by peo-
ple with disabilities when using paratransit services. Results
also indicate significant differences in the experience of
barriers to paratransit services based on disability type.
When compared with other disability types, individuals
who are blind or have low vision reported significantly
higher rates of the pick-up window being missed and



56

Journal of Disability Policy Studies 28(1)

Table 3. Paratransit Service Barriers Encountered by Disability Type (N = 1,503).

Type of barrier All Vision Hearing Communication Mobility Mental/learn
Scheduling problems 54.7% (822) 58.6% 58.8% 54.4% 59.3%* 51.8%
Long wait times 49.8% (749) 53.1% 52.3% 49.7% 51.0% 47.3%
Pick-up window missed 36.0% (541) 42.9%* 38.6% 34.7% 34.9% 33.5%
On bus for too long 35.1% (527) 37.5% 36.6% 33.2% 36.7% 30.4%
Inadequate times of service 32.2% (484) 36.6%* 36.6% 30.1% 31.3% 31.0%
Inappropriate driver attitude 29.4% (442) 32.5% 37.9% 30.6% 29.4% 30.0%
No-show policies 18.3% (275) 19.9% 19.6% 22.8% 17.7% 20.8%
Removed from eligibility 4.5% (67) 4.5% 7.8% 7.8% 4.2% 7.3%*
No barriers experienced 13.6% (205) 10.8% 12.4% 11.9% 13.9% 15.3%

Note. Percentage for all disability types equals the proportion of respondents who encountered this barrier in the past 12 months; respondents could
check multiple responses if more than one barrier was encountered. For each disability type, indicated significance denotes higher percentages in the

experience of that barrier when compared with other disability types.
*,
p <.0l.

inadequate times of service for individual needs. Individuals
with mobility disabilities reported significantly higher rates
of barriers in scheduling and negotiating reservations, and
those with mental health disabilities reported significantly
higher rates of being removed from eligibility for paratran-
sit services. Individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing and
those with communication disabilities reported no signifi-
cant differences in barriers to paratransit services at the
threshold level. Table 3 provides a comprehensive review
of these results.

Results also indicate significant differences between
barriers to paratransit services experienced by urbanized
and nonurbanized users. Specifically, paratransit users in
urban areas show elevated rates of their pick-up window
being missed (39% vs. 30.3%), ¥*(1) = 6.71, p < .01; inap-
propriate driver attitudes (32.3% vs. 20.8%), x°(1) = 13.28,
p < .01; long wait times due to the window of availability
(52.4% vs. 41.9%), ¥*(1) = 9.11, p <.01; and being on the
vehicle too long during trips (39.7% vs. 25.4%), x(1) =
18.31,p <.01.

Discussion

The present study explored the primary barriers that are
experienced by people with disabilities who use public
transportation and complementary paratransit services in
their daily lives. Although public transportation is fre-
quently used and in many cases relied upon by people with
disabilities, substantial barriers persist. These most signifi-
cant barriers to public transportation and complementary
paratransit services continue to negatively affect active
community participation. The findings reflect a need for
changes to existing physical environments, systems, and
attitudes to afford equal access and opportunity to public
transportation. The perspective offered here may provide
insight to guide public priorities, funding, and decision
making in an attempt to reduce transportation concerns and

inequalities for people with disabilities (Rosenbloom,
2007).

Barriers to Public Transportation

Although the ADA paved the way for change in public
transportation, it is evident that existing facilities and sys-
tems are still not meeting the needs of people with disabili-
ties. Nearly half (47.9%) of the respondents reported the
public transportation system was inadequate, meaning that
it did not get them where they needed to go, when they
needed to get there, and in a reasonable amount of time.
Further compounding the problem, many said that routes to
stops and stations were inaccessible (26%), along with inac-
cessible stops and stations themselves (20%). The observa-
tions of the survey are paralleled by findings from the NCD
(2015) and highlight the persistence of these problems. For
people with disabilities who rely on public transportation,
this directly and adversely affects autonomy, community
participation, and socioeconomic position.

Results also indicate three out of the top six barriers to
public transportation experienced by people with disabilities
were related to characteristics of the driver, including drivers
not calling out stops, inappropriate driver attitude, and driv-
er’s lack of knowledge. Alerting passengers about upcoming
stops is a basic necessity for travel, and was reported as a
barrier by more than 30% of respondents. The driver’s lack
of knowledge, which was frequently cited as a barrier,
encompasses factors such as understanding disability eti-
quette and needs of specific disability types, alternate com-
munication strategies, and proper use of assistive equipment
on public transit vehicles. Without sufficient training and
knowledge, drivers are unable to properly assist individuals
with disabilities, creating further challenges and potentially
leading to frustrating or embarrassing incidents.

As evidence from literature suggests, societal attitudes
remain a significant barrier for people with disabilities



Bezyak et al.

57

(Chan, Livneh, Pruett, Wang, & Zheng, 2009), despite laws
prohibiting discrimination in public transportation services.
An inappropriate driver attitude was a significant barrier
reported by more than a quarter of participants, and this bar-
rier was disproportionately higher for people living in urban
environments. These results are consistent with research
showing some bus drivers expected people with disabilities
to be “difficult passengers” and admitted to feeling insecure
when interacting with them (Tillman, Stoppler, Kvas, &
Monniger, 2013). These negative attitudes or prejudice
toward people with disabilities may contribute to behaviors
that are discriminatory (Chan et al., 2009) and are felt as
barriers by those with disabilities.

The results indicate people who are blind/have low
vision and people with mobility impairments/used wheel-
chairs experience a higher number of barriers to public
transportation than other disability categories, suggesting
greater need for interventions related to these populations.
In many cases, barriers were related to features of specific
disabilities, such as people who are blind/have low vision
having greater service animal issues and not being alerted to
stops. Unexpectedly, participants who are blind/have low
vision and those with mobility disabilities/wheelchairs also
experience more problems with drivers than other disability
types (driver’s attitudes and lack of knowledge). This is
likely related to the visibility of the disability and subse-
quent stigma formation (Livneh & Wilson, 2003).

Barriers to Complementary Paratransit Services

Results of the current study also indicate that people with
disabilities who utilized paratransit services reported fre-
quent barriers. Specifically, more than one third of respon-
dents indicated issues with scheduling reservations, long
wait times, drivers missing pick-up windows, and lengthy
travel times, and results from the current study parallel find-
ings from the NCD (2015). The source of these problems
may be inadequate funding, resulting in providers being
understaffed, lacking the sophistication to manage door-to-
door service in a consistent and effective manner, and being
overloaded with passengers. The ADA requirement of com-
plementary paratransit service is an unfunded federal man-
date, leaving funding decisions and support to state and
local governments. Complementary paratransit systems
appear to be more overwhelmed in higher demand, urban
environments, as evidenced by the results indicating ele-
vated rates of barriers in these locations. These barriers are
likely connected to increasing cost for services at a time
when the demands are growing and funding is increasingly
scarce (Denson, 2015).

Individuals with disabilities who rely on paratransit ser-
vices typically have to schedule and plan out their activities
well in advance to receive transportation services. Despite
these efforts, many people with disabilities still frequently

encounter barriers, such as those described above. Many
individuals with disabilities find complementary paratransit
services are undependable and typically arrive late or not at
all (Scheer, Kroll, Neri, & Beatty, 2003). As a result, indi-
viduals with disabilities may fail to engage in social events,
obtain or maintain employment, attend to health care needs,
or participate in recreational activities, which clearly pre-
vent full participation in a community (Anaby et al., 2013;
Jansuwan et al., 2013).

Limitations

Although the sample size for the current study was large, it
was a convenience-based sample, which affects the general-
izability of results. In addition, data were collected using an
online survey, and as a result, individuals with disabilities
who do not have access to a computer were not included in
the sample. More specifically, the sample for the current
study may have been skewed as a result of the survey meth-
odology. The sample included participants with a higher
level of education and increased rate of employment, as
compared with the general population and current employ-
ment statistics for individuals with disabilities (Kraus,
2015; U.S. Census Bureau, 2016). The sample also included
a larger percentage of individuals with mobility disabilities
and people who are blind/have low vision. The sample also
did not include individuals with intellectual disabilities
(IDs) due to limited reading proficiencies among this popu-
lation. The research design was descriptive in nature, and as
aresult, interpretations cannot be made regarding predictive
or casual relationships among variables. In addition, data
were only collected from individuals with disabilities, and
as result, comparisons cannot be made with the experience
of people without disabilities who use public transportation.
Measurement was also exclusively self-report, which pres-
ents a certain degree of bias and error that must also be
taken into account.

Implications for Policy Development

Despite legislation mandating accessible public transporta-
tion for individuals with disabilities, the current transporta-
tion system continues to present significant barriers.
Individuals with disabilities may choose not to travel to
avoid these problems, and others may struggle to meet their
daily needs due to significant barriers in the transportation
system (Christensen, 2014; U.S. Department of
Transportation & Bureau of Transportation Statistics,
2003). As a result, changes need to be made to improve
accessibility of public transportation across the nation, and
these changes must be enforced by state and local govern-
ments. In addition, attention must be paid to shifts in demo-
graphic groups, which enhance the significance of barriers
to the public transportation system. More specifically, the



58

Journal of Disability Policy Studies 28(1)

population of older adults is expected to double by 2050
(Ortman, Velkoff, & Hogan, 2014), which will further high-
light physical barriers to public transportation including
inaccessible stops and stations. In addition, the population
of nonnative English speakers in the United States nearly
tripled from 1980 to 2010, and is expected to further
increase in coming years (Ryan, 2013), which will increase
the need for alternate communication strategies in public
transportation systems. Demographic shifts such as these
must be incorporated into future planning and policy
development.

Advanced technology. Of the areas in need of reform, being
alerted to upcoming stops is a frequent and substantial bar-
rier for many people with disabilities using public transpor-
tation. This modest hurdle could be addressed through
combined efforts of vehicle modifications and assistive
technology. Public transportation vehicles could be
equipped with stop signals and text to alert passengers with
auditory disabilities. In addition, personal assistive devices
and applications (e.g., cell phone applications) could be
developed to provide feedback directly to the individual.
Cell phone applications (i.e., apps) are currently being eval-
uated for utility in planning travel routes, reading and
understanding signs, and calculating the time to get to your
destination (Gallup, Lamothe, & Gallup, 2015). Carmien
et al. (2005) initiated a “Mobility-for-All” project, which
utilized global positioning system (GPS) to provide mobile
prompts for bus stops with the goal of assisting people with
cognitive disabilities to become independent commuters.
Using similar protocol, an app could be developed with
GPS or locator signaling to help people identify each public
transit stop to address these significant barriers.

Professional development. Results of the current study also
indicate a strong need for additional training programs for
drivers and other personnel, which could address the acces-
sibility needs of specific disabilities and the importance of
clear and consistent calls at all stops. The resolution of atti-
tudinal barriers is a much more challenging task, which
cannot be “fixed” through any single action, but rather
through deliberate forward progress in public education and
advocacy efforts. Chan et al. (2009) cite evidence for using
multidimensional strategies around (a) increasing contact,
(b) education, (c) social influence, (d) disability simula-
tions, (e) protests, (f) political efforts, and (g) impression
management to decrease the impact of negative attitudes
toward individuals with disabilities. These principles can be
used in the public transportation systems by creating train-
ing interventions for all drivers of public transportation
vehicles, which will address and begin to change negative
attitudes toward people with disabilities. In a qualitative
study of drivers’ attitudes toward people with IDs, Tillman
et al. (2013) concluded that bus drivers are an essential part

of the social support system for people with ID, and valid
information, communication, and social interaction skills
training should be required additions to training programs.
It may prove useful to initially implement trainings in urban
environments based on findings from the present study
indicating drivers’ negative attitudes were of more conse-
quence in urban areas for those who are blind or have low
vision and for those with mobility impairments or who used
wheelchairs.

With attention to the implications previously discussed,
the implementation of specific policy recommendations is
an essential next step in improving accessibility to public
transportation. For example, creating outreach programs for
key stakeholders will allow service providers to develop a
complete understanding of barriers to public transportation
in specific regions. These programs may include opportuni-
ties for drivers and riders of public transportation to discuss
resolutions in an open, public forum. Incorporating strate-
gies such as contact, education, and social influence may
target negative attitudes toward individuals with disabilities
and further improve these opportunities for policy develop-
ment (Chan et al., 2009). Policy recommendations must
also address the use of public transportation in emergency
evacuations to assist individuals with disabilities. As previ-
ous research indicates, emergency planning and prepared-
ness for individuals with disabilities is lacking in many
communities across the nation (Fox, White, Rooney, &
Rowland, 2007), and the use of public transportation must
be incorporated into efforts creating and improving emer-
gency plans addressing individuals with disabilities to pro-
mote safe and effective evacuations in the event of an
emergency.

Implications for Future Research

Future research investigating barriers to public transporta-
tion and paratransit services is also needed to address many
of the unanswered questions and uncover any changes or
improvements made since data collection for the current
study in 2009. For example, collecting information regard-
ing public transportation of individuals without disabilities
would allow comparisons to be made between individuals
with and without disabilities. This examination would also
tease out problems inherent to public transportation, rather
than problems encountered only by individuals with dis-
abilities. Additional systems-level investigations could
examine the cost-effective nature of alternatives to para-
transit services. Accessible versions of Uber or Lyft may
eliminate some of the barriers identified in this study and
may provide a useful alternative. Further investigation of
the impact of winter weather on the accessibility of public
transportation is also warranted to provide improved ser-
vices in these regions. Future research could also collect
input from individuals with disabilities regarding current



Bezyak et al.

59

and future policies intended to improve accessibility to pub-
lic transportation. Focus groups or individual interviews
would provide input from key stakeholders and ensure poli-
cies lead to improved accessibility.

Conclusion

The current investigation of barriers to public transportation
and complementary paratransit services provides an excel-
lent foundation for identification and resolution of signifi-
cant problems in these systems. Information was collected
from 4,161 individuals with disabilities across the nation,
and critical feedback was provided. Participants reported
physical and attitudinal barriers to public transportation,
which affected people with a variety of disabilities. Results
from the current study confirm previous reports of barriers
to public transportation and complementary paratransit ser-
vices, and also go further in describing important attitudinal
barriers and systems barriers, and identifying differences in
barriers for specific disability categories (NCD, 2015),
which emphasizes the importance of these challenges.
Although passage of the ADA led to significant improve-
ments to physical barriers in the fixed-route systems, indi-
viduals with disabilities still experience barriers to public
transportation, and improvement efforts have plateaued in
the last 10 years (NCD, 2005a). Without more attention to
these problems, individuals with disabilities will continue
to be denied full community participation, economic stabil-
ity, and social inclusion.

Opportunities to address accessibility concerns are
extensive and include a variety of potential improvements.
Equipping public transportation vehicles with stop signals
and text will greatly assist passengers with auditory dis-
abilities, and cell phone applications with GPS capabilities
could be developed to provide feedback directly to the indi-
vidual. Trainings for drivers and other personnel, along
with outreach efforts to connect key stakeholder groups,
may also begin to improve negative attitudes toward indi-
viduals with disabilities. Efforts such as these must become
a priority to state and local governments to increase acces-
sibility of public transportation, which, in turn, will allow
individuals with disabilities to experience full inclusion in
their community.

Declaration of Conflicting Interests

The author(s) declared no potential conflicts of interest with respect
to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Funding

The author(s) disclosed receipt of the following financial support
for the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article:
Funding for this project was provided by Federal Transit
Administration, ADA Materials Cooperative Agreement

C0O-26-8001-01. Preparation for this manuscript was also sup-
ported through a National Institute on Disability, Independent
Living, and Rehabilitation Research (NIDILRR) funded ADA
Participation Action Research Consortium grant #90DP0026-02-
01 (formerly NIDRR #H133A120008).

References

Aldred, R., & Woodcock, J. (2008). Transport: Challenging dis-
abling environments. Local Environment, 13, 485-496.

Anaby, D., Hand, C., Bradley, L., DiRezze, B., Forhan, M.,
DiGiacomo, A., & Law, M. (2013). The effect of the environ-
ment on participation of children and youth with disabilities:
A scoping review. Disability and Rehabilitation, 35, 1589—
1598.

Carmien, S., Dawe, M., Gerhard, F., Gorman, A., Kintsch, A., &
Sullivan, J. (2005). Socio-technical environments supporting
people with cognitive disabilities using public transportation.
ACM Transactions on Computer-Human Interaction, 12,
233-262.

Chan, F., Livneh, H., Pruett, S., Wang, C., & Zheng, L. X. (2009).
Societal attitudes toward disability: Concepts, measurements,
and interventions. In E. D. Cardoso & J. A. Chronister (Eds.),
Understanding psychosocial adjustment to chronic illness
and disability: A handbook for evidence-based practitioners
in rehabilitation (pp. 333-367). New York, NY: Springer.

Christensen, K. M. (2014). Socially equitable community plan-
ning: Including individuals with disabilities in democratic
association of place. Review of Disability Studies, 5(3), 49-52.

Denson, C. (2015). Public sector transportation for people with
disabilities: A satisfaction survey. Journal of Rehabilitation,
66(3), 29-37.

Fox, M. H., White, G. W., Rooney, C., & Rowland, G. L. (2007).
Disaster preparedness and response for persons with mobil-
ity impairments. Journal of Disability Policy Studies, 17,
196-205.

Gallup, J., Lamothe, S., & Gallup, A. (2015). Enhancing trans-
portation education using mobile devices and applications.
Teaching Exceptional Children, 48(1), 54-61.

Jansuwan, S., Christensen, K. M., & Chen, A. (2013). Assessing
the transportation needs of low-mobility individuals: Case
study of a small urban community in Utah. Journal of Urban
Planning and Development, 139(2), 104-114.

Kraus, L. (2015). 2015 Disability Statistics Annual Report.
Durham: University of New Hampshire

Livneh, H., & Wilson, L. (2003). Coping strategies as predictors
and mediators of disability-related variables and psychoso-
cial adaptation: An exploratory investigation. Rehabilitation
Counseling Bulletin, 46, 194-208.

National Council on Disability. (2005a). Access to transportation
by people with disabilities: Illustrations of implementation
from the United States. Washington, DC: Author.

National Council on Disability. (2005b). The current state of
transportation for people with disabilities in the United
States. Washington, DC: Author.

National Council on Disability. (2015). Transportation update:
Where we 've gone and what we 've learned. Washington, DC:
Author.



60

Journal of Disability Policy Studies 28(1)

Ortman, J. M., Velkoff, V. A., & Hogan, H. (2014, May). 4n
aging nation: The older population in the United States.
Retrieved from https://www.census.gov/prod/2014pubs/
p25-1140.pdf

Penfold, C., Cleghorn, N., Creegan, C., Neil, H., & Webster, S.
(2008). Travel behavior, experiences, and aspirations of dis-
abled people. London, England: National Centre for Social
Research.

Rogers, D. (2002, December). Balancing act: Stabilizing para-
transit costs. Retrieved from http://americancityandcounty.
com/mag/government_balancing_act_stabilizing/

Rosenbloom, S. (2007). Transportation patterns and problems
of people with disabilities. In M. J. Field & A. M. Jette
(Eds.), The future of disability in America (pp. 519-560).
Washington, DC: National Academic Press.

Ryan, C. (2013, August). Language use in the United States: 2011,
American community survey reports. Retrieved from https:/
www.census.gov/prod/2013pubs/acs-22.pdf

Scheer, J., Kroll, T., Neri, T., & Beatty, P. (2003). Access barri-
ers for persons with disabilities: The consumer’s perspective.
Journal of Disability Policy Studies, 13, 221-230.

Tillman, V., Haveman, M., Stoppler, R., Kvas, S., & Monninger,
D. (2013). Public bus drivers and social inclusion:
Evaluation of their knowledge and attitudes toward people

with intellectual disabilities. Journal of Policy and Practice
in Intellectual Disabilities, 10,307-313.

Transit Cooperative Research Program. (2005). TCRP Synthesis
60: Practices in no-show and late cancellation policies for
ADA paratransit. Washington, DC: Author.

U.S. Census Bureau. (2011). 2010 American Community Survey
1 year estimates. Retrieved from http://factfinder.census.gov/
faces/tableservices/jsf/pages/productview.xhtml?src=bkmk

U.S. Census Bureau. (2016). Educational attainment in the United
States: 2015. Retrieved from https://www.census.gov/content/
dam/Census/library/publications/2016/demo/p20-578.pdf

U.S. Census Bureau. (n.d.). 2010 census urban and rural classi-
fication and urban area criteria. Retrieved from http://www.
census.gov/geo/reference/ua/urban-rural-2010.html

U.S. Department of Transportation & Bureau of Transportation
Statistics. (2003). Transportation difficulties keep over half a
million disabled at home. Retrieved from https://www.rita.dot.
gov/bts/sites/rita.dot.gov.bts/files/publications/special_reports_
and_issue_briefs/issue_briefs/number_03/pdf/entire.pdf

U.S. General Accounting Office. (2003). Transportation—
disadvantaged populations: Some coordination efforts among
programs providing transportation services, but obstacles per-
sist. Retrieved from http://www.gao.gov/products/GAO-03-697

Widgix LLC. (2009). Surveygizmo. Boulder, CO: Author.



ARCHITECTURE - ENGINEERING * PLANNING
SURVEYING - CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

INNOVATIVE IDEAS
EXCEPTIONAL DESIGN
UNMATCHED CLIENT SERVICE

MEETING MEMORANDUM

MEETING DATE: 4/25/2019 DATE: 6/6/2019
CLIENT: Ingham County Road Department WRITTEN BY: Jason Whitten
PROJECT: Okemos Road Bridge Environmental Assessment

PROJECT #: 1841-6819-00

LOCATION OF MEETING: Meridian Township Hall

PURPOSE OF MEETING: Public Information Meeting

SUMMARY:

The Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held on April 25, 2019 at the Meridian Township Hall from 4:00-
8:00 PM. A public notice was published in the Lansing State Journal on April 16 and April 21 and the Towne
Courier on April 14 and 21. The meeting was also posted on the Meridian Township and Facebook websites.

The PIM was held in an open house format and conducted by members of the project team which included:

Bill Conklin, P.E. — Ingham County Road Department (ICRD)
Kelly Jones, P.E. — ICRD

Mark Lessens, P.E. — DLZ (Project Consultant)

Jason Whitten — DLZ

The following exhibits (attached) were presented at the meeting:

Welcome

How to Provide Comments

Project Goals

NEPA Process

Project Schedule

Alternative 1: Reconstruct and Rehabilitate Bridges on Existing Alignment
Alternative 2: Build New Bridge on New Alignment - Maintain Camelback Bridge
Alternative 3: Build New Bridge on New Alignment — Remove Camelback Bridge
. Alternative 4: Build New Bridges on Existing Alignment — Remove Camelback Bridge
10. Proposed Cross Sections

11. Example Bridge/Rail Types

12. Illustrative Alternatives Comparison Matrix

CoNOU A WN R

Additionally, take-home materials (attached) providing a summary of the project were also provided at the
meeting. The meeting was attended by approximately 20 citizens. See attached sign-in sheet.

1425 Keystone Ave, Lansing, MI 48911-4039 OFFICE 517.393.6800 ONLINE WWW.DLZ.COM

Akron Bridgeville Burns Harbor Chicago Cincinnati Cleveland Columbus Detroit Fort Wayne Indianapolis Joliet Kalamazoo Lansing

Lexington Louisville Madison Melvindale Munster Pittsburgh Saint Joseph South Bend Toledo



(NNOVATIVE IDEAS Okemos Bridge Road Bridge EA

EXCEPTIONAL DESIGN Stakeholder Kickoff
UNMATCHED CLIENT SERVICE Page 2 of 2

ARCHITECTURE « ENGINEERING - PLANNING
SURVEYING « CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

Seven comment forms were submitted during the meeting (attached). Of the seven comments received, three
were in favor of Alternative 3 and two were in favor of Alterative 4. One comment noted “design #3 has the
most appeal”, but also noted “saving green median is preferred.” All of the comment forms agreed with the
removal of the camelback bridge, with four comments specifically citing the high cost of future maintenance
as their reason for recommending removal. In speaking with citizens during the meeting, the project team
members noted that the majority of citizens recommended the camelback bridge be removed. One citizen
recommended that the camelback bridge remain in place.

Based on comments from representatives of Meridian Township, Alternative 3 has since been modified to
convert the left turn lane into a grass median between Mt. Hope Road and the river, as well as a portion of the
left turn lane between the river and Clinton Street. Alternative 4 has since been modified to include on-street
bike lanes. The updated alternatives are attached to this memorandum.

In addition to the PIM comments, Bill Conklin attended the Meridian Township Board meeting on April 16,
2019 and received a request from a board member to consider the use of ten-foot lanes. In response to this
comment, ICRD is required to follow the “Michigan Department of Transportation Local Agency Program
Guidelines for Geometrics (MDOT-LAP Guidelines)” 4R standards when constructing new roadways and
bridges. This manual provides information and guidelines upon which to base the design of federal and state
funded local agency road and bridge projects. The design criteria set forth in the MDOT-LAP Guidelines are
established in the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) publication
“A Policy on Geometric Design of Highway and Streets 2018, 7t" Edition”.

Per the 4R standards of the MDOT-LAP Guidelines, road and bridge projects on the National Highway System
(NHS) must be designed, at a minimum, to applicable AASHTO guidelines. Per AASHTO guidelines, lane widths
may vary from 10 to 12 feet. Lane widths of 10 feet may be used in more constrained areas where truck and
bus volumes are relatively low, and speeds are less than 35 mph. Lane widths of 11 feet are used quite
extensively for urban arterial street designs. The 12 feet lane widths are desirable, where practical, on high-
speed, free-flowing, principal arterials.

Okemos Road is classified as an urban arterial on an NHS route and has an ADT of approximately 31,000
vehicles with a moderate amount of bus and truck traffic. Okemos Road currently provides 11-foot lanes south
of the Okemos Road/Mt. Hope Road intersection. Additionally, north of the project area, 11-foot lanes have
been recommended as part of the Downtown Okemos Redevelopment Project, which-will provide 11-foot
lanes on southbound Okemos Road to receive planned dual left turn traffic from westbound Hamilton Road to
southbound Okemos Road, but will keep existing 10-foot wide northbound lanes. Eleven-foot lanes are also
recommended with the proposed bike lanes and existing curvature of the roadway just north of the bridges to
avoid vehicle crowding due to curvature related vehicle off-tracking-and related crowding of the bike lanes.
Transition from 11 to ten-foot lanes northbound would be provided north of the curves north of the bridges.

Based on the MDOT guidelines, AASHTO, road classification, ADT, and the existing/proposed lane widths
adjacent to the project area, 11-foot lanes are recommended for the proposed road and bridge improvements.

M:\PROJ\1841\6819 - Okemos Bridge EA\Meeatings\Stakeholder Meeting\Meeting Memorandum (1-24-19).Docx




6102 ‘St |lidy
3uI199IAl Uoiew.Jojuj d1|qngd

109loud Juswanoiduwi

93plig peoy sowa)O 3yl
0} QWO |9\




7103

lled sy} ui bulresy olqnd puspy “p
Bio weyBui@uIpjuoOM e ulpuo |jig 03 sjuswwo jlewy ¢
Bunesy sybiuo] je sJaquiap wea] joafold e o) yeadg ‘g

Bunssy uonewou| o1gngd s3ybiuo] je wod juswiwod o1qnd IO (114 L

SJUBWIUIO?D BPINO.IL O] MOK




7'1d3™

J4ed COmbLmu_ pue Jed YIUOAA O] sSa3de paziiolow-uou pue paziiojow anoJdW|e

|]2UUBYD JSALI B3 01 UOI1B|3J
ul Mmays pue AJ3owoa8 sa8pliq 01 Sulle|al suoIIPUOD dljnelpAy 3|gelisapun SullSIXd 93 SSAIPPY e

:01 a4e 129/oud 9y jo sasodund Asepuodasg

sueliisapad pue ‘s3|9A21q ‘SII21YIA JO MOJ} D1JJBJ1 JUBIDILD pUR DS UlelUIR|A e

I9AIY Jepa) pay
9Y3 J3A0 sa3pliq Juaidiyap Ajjeanionuls pue 919|0sqo Ajjeuoiiouny ay3 a1eljigeyal Jo/pue ade|daye

:0} aJe 129foud ay3 jo sasodind Asewlid

STVOO LIoFrodd




sses0ad [eaosdde YMHAL / LOan Buipuad abueys o3 308lqns ajnpayss NT— ﬁ— )ﬂ

S$S820.1d shonupjuo) = I auo}sa|i 309foud = I Bunes 211qnd = O

610¢ lied 93e7] uopejuaWIN90(Q (v3) Juswissassy
uoisideg Bunioddng 1o 6102 lled JejuswiuodIAug
® M3IASY YMHA V3 pasinay aiedaid Buresy o1qnd aje|naJio pue asedaid

juawaAjoAul a1jqnd Buiob-uo snonuuon

6102 ‘GZ Idy
Bunasy

uolewoju] o1qnd

SaAlJeUIR)} Y aAleUIB)| Y

ajenjeA] paliajaid e }99]9S

juawidAjoAul a1jgqnd Buloh-uo snonuuoH

saAljeuId)|Y

‘pg Arenuep pasN pue asoding
] 61L0C ¥C
SaRed BUnoSI JOPIOUDNEY

*sdajs asay) sepnjaui AjjeaidA) (v3) Juswissassy
|ejuswiuodiaug  ue  Jo} ssadoid  Apnmis @961 *

40 (vdaN) 19y Adljod |ejuswiuosiaug [euoneN ayl,

3y} aulwialaqg




ssas0.4d jeaosdde WMHL / LOoan Buipuad aBueyo o3 joalgns sinpayas NW— Qﬂ.ﬂ

.......................... mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmememe======] | ]G UOI}ONJI}SUOD
YA AR T Y L E———— sjuswind20( uoi3onisuo’ jo uoneiedald
0202/6 10T JBJUIN-================ EEE—— ---uoisioaq/eroiddy YMHA
1A |- e mmmmemmnne- =mmmmmeeen -------bulieaH o1jqnd
610Z 3ISNBNYf-=====mmmmmmmmmmeemcaean = ——— JUDWISSOSSY |eJusWuUoJIAUg
610C dUN[-mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmee pajsjdwio) 3 104 }IoMpjdl4 | UOOS[|0) Bleq
6102 Aep-============ e 9Aljeuld)}|y poaliajald JO UOI}09|9S
6102 ‘ST |Hdy--mmmmnnnm R -----Bunes|y uoyeuLiou] Jljqnd
610T [HA-mmmmmmmmmmmmm e S9AlJEUIR}|Y JO UOREN|eAT
6102 Aenue------=mmmmememeee—eee—————— ---S9Al}eu.d}]y JO uoljedliuapj
L e ---}Je}g Jo9foid

= Q\NQN\.\Q%\% S$390ed LIIr0d




ONIMYVIN LNIW3IAVd d3S0dodd

TIVM ONINIVLIY 03S0dOodd ——

AVMAVYOY Q3S0dodd —

YJOM 300148 d3S0d0odd ——

MIVM3AIS 03S0dOodd Fmmes
ATVM3AIS ONLSIX3

AVM—40—LHOI ONUSIX3 ——

390188 NVIMLS3A3d ONLLSIXT I

aN3O931

~y

!pg uosnbied

1 o

. 4

e

60L¢ 8unr

06 (Ld) Z¥OH ©

———

I JAILVNYELTY
I 3dN9OI4

LINIWNSS3SSY TTVINIWNOYIANS
103rodd LNIN3AOHdNI
394148 avod SOW3MO




aun
SIVMIAIS Q3SOd0Nd M 601 sunr

MIVM3AIS ONLSIX3

TIVM ONINIVL3Y 0d3S0dOodd ——
ONIMYVYN LNIW3AVd a3S0dodd

AVM—40—LHOIN ONLSIXT —— o Wy 208 0
AVMQVOY 03SOdONd ——
39018 NVINLSIA3d ONLLSIXT S
#ARA. FD0HE 0350c0Hd —— LININSSISSY TV.LNIANOYIANT
¢ AAILYNH3LTV 1203rodd LNINWIAOHCNI

~

aN3941 ¢ 34Nol4 394i148 avod SOW3XO0




ONIMYVA LN3IN3AVd d3S0dOodd
AVMAVOY d3sS0dodd ——
MHOM 30018 d3S0d0odd —

TIVM ONINIV13Y d3S0dodd —

NIYM3AIS Q3SOd0oyd
MIVM3AIS ONLSIX3

AVM—40—LHOI ONUSIX3 ——

390148 NVIMLS3A3d ONLLSIXT I

aN3931

-

: ’UDJ UOSNB

...1,.

60L¢g aunr

06 (Ld) 'Z¥OH O

—

¢ AAILVNYILTV
¢ 3d4Nold

IN3INSS3SSY TVLINIANOYIANI
103rodd LNIW3IAOHdNI
394ld8 avod SOW3M0




ONIMYVA LNIW3AVd d3S0d0dd

TIVM ONINIV13Y d3S0dodd —

AVMAVOY d3s0dodd ——

AYOM 3901¥8 Q3S0dOo¥d ——

MVM3AIS 03SOdo¥d s
MIVM3AIS ONLSIX3

AVM—d40—LHOI ONUSIX3 ——

390148 NVIMLS3IA3d ONLLSIXT I

AN3931

5

a0

o SUDg uosnbieq

A

60L¢ sunr

06 (L) ‘Z¥OH ©

m— ]

¥ 3AILYNYALTY
¥ 3dNOI4

LNIWSSISSY TVLNIANOAIANT
1203rodd LNIW3AOHdNI
394148 dvod SOW3MO




60L¢ aunr

SNOILO3S SS0dD 3AILYNY3ILTY 03S0d0dd
G 3dNOl4

123r0dd LNIWIAOHdNI
39dI48 dv0d SOW3IMO

HLYON ONIMOOT

¢ JAILYNY3LTV

(dAL)
ONNIVY
[*~—30018

: Vo
30 INOD L6
IN0D
STl
xvm3as | svm3as HS INVI BN INVI BN 3NV N¥NL Q3MVHS NV BS 3NV BS 0HS
=g 07 Z i i i i i z
ININNOY
& sonmo—"|
VIOSY4 10O OL 1IN0 «: =/+.0-51 VIOSY4 100 0L 1n0
K3 N =/+.£-01 29
HLHON ONDIOO1
L 3AILVNH3LTV

/ 030 (daL)

%030 INMIVY

/uzou \\ oNod 6 /rl/ 300188

511
vm3as | 3NV BN 3INVI BN HS 3NV BS 3NV BS HS
e ot ot T i 0 z
LNIWNONY INIANOTY s
QY SOWINO BN 0¥ SON3O BS
VIDSY3 1IN0 OL LNO XYN =/+.9=9¢ VIDSY4 1NO OL 1N0
K3 NIN —/+.9-4¢ .62




610C Ydv

SNOILO3IS SSOND 3AILYNY3LTY d3S0d0¥d 103rodd LNINWIA0HINI
9 3dnald 394149 avod SOWIMO

HIHON ONDIOOT

¥ IAILYNY3LTY

« 2 « r.v \ /l AJ o + + ¢ N\ i

3NV] BN 3NV BN 3NV NENL
i

N
3008 — |

k| a1 3NV NNy 3NV BS EVal: NV 3NI8
iy K0 & Z i A FTey S
INIWNONY LN3INNONY
oy SON3W0 BN—"] 0y SON3Y0 as—"]
YOSY4 1O O1 1IN0 XVN_0-,12 VIOSY3 1NO OL LNO
¥ NIN 2.0-5 EQ
HLYON ONINOO1
¢ JAILVNYELTY
| (N N Lot
— Mo e — j — — 3008
xvm3as NV 308 AR 3NV BN 3NV N¥NL Q3NVHS 3NV1 BS 3NVT BS AREN:]
8 s i D It o 0 5
ANINNDIY
o sonao—"]
VIDSY4 1NO OL 100
8L




*u9a1g ul paiySiySiy S.e B3} UOKEN[BAS [ENPIAIPUI YIBD SSIIPPE 153 YIIYM (S)aAjeusalje ayL
‘wea) afosd Azeundisipialul 3y Jo Juawspnl [euoissajold ay3 uo paseq a1am sJujuel 3sayL "sanneula)je 3y} Suowe speduwi Anize|aL JO uosedwod anneljenb e apinoad s3upjues ysiy/a1esapow/mo| 3y :s31oN

*28puiq Japun syed
uaamyaq yied uerysapad Joj Ajiunyioddo apinosd
Aej 'sa8puq yjoq uo saue| 3yiq 3193.35-U0 pue
98pLIq punoqyuou uo Ajj1oe) uelysapad sapInoid
‘ulewsal pjnom adpuiq uelysapad 3unsixy
Y3y

*28puq Japun syJed usamiaq yjed uelysapad
1o} Ajlunpioddo apinoad Aepy "98pLig mau
uo saue| 3yiq 399.35-uo pue Ajljide} ueysapad
S3PINOIJ "UlBWa pinom a8puq uelysapad Bunsix3
YsiH

*28plq uelsapad se pasn aq pjnom
28pliq punoqyoN "UIRWJ PINOM PEOY SOWHNO
Jo apis ysam uo a8plq uelysapad 3unsix3
Y314 o3 ajesapoN

“ulewal pjnom aspuq
)2Bq|aWed JO ISED UO }|EMBIPIS PUB PEOY SOWNO
Jo apis 1sam uo a8piiq uelysapad Sunsix3y
2je13poN

suensapad
ajepowwodde
2aaJ8aq

s1sipAdIq
PIym o0

pue
SaAljeulalje

sani|ey
paz11010W-UON

*|]auueyd J3AU ueds pinom sa3plig MaN "UOIIBAB[D

2de4Ns J91eM)ORq SUIDNPaJ ‘[dUURYD WEea}s Woly

paAowal aq pjnom sjuawinge aspliq punoqyiion
LE]

‘|]auueyd 13l ueds pjnom a3pLiq MaN "UOIBA3|D
30e4NS J33eMyoeq SUIdNPal ‘[SUUBYD WEdJ]s Woly
panowal aq pjnom sjuawinge adpliq punoqylioN

yaiH

‘|]auueyd
13l ueds pjnom a8piiq maN “Bulpooy weasysdn
jo |enjuajod Buiseasoul ‘SUOIIBA3|d @2B4NS
Ia1emydeq Jaysiy Ul 53nsay “JSAU JO Mo|j [RInjeU
Buryolysal pue 3undnisip ‘JaUUBYD JAAL Ul UlBWS
pinom syuawinge a8pliq punoqyiou Sunsix3
Mo

-Buipooyy weasysdn jo |eijuajod ayy
Suisealoul ‘suoijeaa|d adeyns Jajemydeq 1aysiy
Ul s3NSaY "JAALI 3YJ JO MOJ) |einjeu SuildlsaL
pue Bundnisip ‘{auueyd JaAl 3y} Ul ulewal
p|nom syuawinge 28pliq punoqyiiou 3unsixg
Mo

SUOIJBAB[D DIBJINS J9}BMYIB] 3INPalL
pUE J3AL 3Y]} UIYJIM SUOIIDLIISRI 9INpal
pInom saAieusajje yoiym o3 aaidaq

syuawanosdwy
J1|nespAH

(00955$ @njeA passasse ‘uoijisinbae
|enuapisai/Aem-jo-3y3ii Jo 3503 3pnjaul JoU s30p)
000'529'L$

000°90T°L$

000'88L'S$

000'ZE0ES

sie||op 6T0Z JB3A "sjuawanoidwil
Aempeos pue 93puq 10j 53500
BuusauiSua  ‘uondoniisuod  sapnjou|

150D UOIINAISUO)
|9A@1 Sujuueld

")ied uosnsia4 je uonisinboe Aem-jo-3ysry
"jied youop je 3oedu Buipesd Aesodwa])
*32uapisal Jo uonisinboe |iny annbai Aepy
'SUOI3BI0[2 SSBUISNG ON
ajesapopy

*@2uapisal ;g sysed
je syiwuad Buipesd Asesodwa) asinbaa pjnopy
‘awoy |eljuspisal
38 uonisinbae Aem-jo-juysis Joujw asinbai Aepy
*SUOIJRI0|2J S53UISN( 1O [BIJU3pISal ON
3)eJapO|N 03 MO

‘aJuapisal g syJed
e sjiwiad Buipeud Atesodway alinbal pinom
*suoiyisinboe Aem-j0-3ysi1 oN
*SUOIJBI0|34 SSBUISNQ IO [BIJUPISAI ON
3]BJ3pOJA O} MO

suonisinboe Aem-jo-3y3il oN
SUOIIBI0J3. SSBUISNQ 10 |BIjUBPISAL ON
Mo

323foud jo uoianIsuUod Aq
pasned saduaplsal pue ‘syed ‘sjooyas
‘sassauisng  ‘sjpased 0}  syedu)

uopisinboy
Aepm-jo-1yary

‘[ewiulw syedwi |BJUSWUOIIAUS JBYIQ
*(syoedwi (3)9 13 (3)p UONI3S)
yied uosndia4 je syoedwi Aem-jo-3ysu Juauewsad
3 Jded youom je yoedw Buipess Atesodwa)
*3JuUapisal jJo uonyisinboe ||nj annbas Aepy
*28puiq yoeqjawed Jo uoljijowap salinbay
3jeIapOW 0] MO

‘lewiuiw s3oeduwl [BJUSLWIUOLIAUS 13YI0
*s)jied je yoedwi Buipes3d Asesodwa |
*28pliq Yoeq[aWed Jo uonijowap salinbay
9jeJapOW O] MOT

s3oedW| JUSWUOIIAUS [BWIUIN
Mol

s3oedW] JUBWUOIIAUD [BWIUIA
Mo

(232 ‘saniunwiwod J1joiq
‘sweatys ‘9slou  ‘sadinosal |einynd
‘spuepjam “8'a) sad1nosal Sulpunolns
1oedwl saAijeusalje yoiym o3 aaidag

spedw)
[UEITITTINTE]

‘uoianJIsuod Buunp syoedwi ssadde Alesodwa)
*syedwi Ajunwwod [euwiuly
“3ALIP 82IAJ3S '8 ‘19N055042
ue|paw ‘eln 9auapisalg syied 03 s3I SAPINOIY
?jelapopy 01 Mo

‘uoiaNAIsuod 3uunp syoedwi ssadoe Alesodwa)
*syoedwi AJunwiwod [ewiuijy ‘pasueyoun sulewsal
UOI3095.133ul SOWNO/3dOH “IN °3ue| uin} Ysa|
BIA 92UBpISAL 13 SHyJed 03 SS320E 1931 SAPIAOIY
Mo

*uoi3aNJIsuod Suunp syedwi ssadde Asesodwa |
*s3oeduwl Ajlunwiwod [ewiulpy “padueydun sulewas
UO1303513)U1 SOWNO/2dOH "IN "due| uiny P3|
BIA 32UBpISaL 1B syled 0} SS320E 1231 SAPINOI
Mo

*uol3aNJIsuod Sulnp
syoedwi ssadse Alesodwa] “padueyoun sulewsas
uoI3035193ul soWwa)O/2doH "IN pue ‘ssaulsng
puE ‘|00Y3s ‘a5uapisal O} §S3IIY JIA0SSOII
UeIpaW eIA sy1ed 03 ssa22e BulSiXa sulejuIB
9]eIAPOIN 0} MO

sassaulisng pue ‘syied ‘sjooyss
‘souapisal ‘speol [BJO| 03} Sssa%de
joedw saAljeusalje yoiym o3 asudag

spedw| Ajjunwwo)
/55920Y |e207

*UoI335133Ul SOWNO/2doH IN
Je UeIpaw uewysapad sulejule “yied uosnsia4
ojul aue| uIn3-3ysu pue g syJed ojul aue| uiny
13| SIPINOIJ "SPIBPUR)S UBISIP JUBLIND SJBIN
ysiH

*uoIIsIAUI sowO/adoH JIN
je uelpaw uels}sapad sapInold "Nied uosndia4
03Ul aue| uIn3-3y3i1 g syJed ojul sue| uiny
13| S9PIAOIJ "Spdepue)s uSISap JULIND SIB3N
YsiH

*Uo11295193Ul sowNO/2doH "IN je uelpaw
uelysapad sapinoid pue syied ojul auej uiny
13| SapInoLd ‘spiepuels udisap Jualind s}saN
CED]

*SJuswWalinbal peo| Jo spiepue)s udisap
JU31INd 393W Jou p|nom a3pliq punoqyiIoN
*spJepuejs udisap Jua.ind }33W pjnom
93pug punogyinos Map ‘saiijioey uenysapad
pue a3eaue|/Aempeol Sunsixa sulejuie|y
2)eJ2pOIN 03 MO

peoy sowayQ Suoje
sueujsapad pue ‘sapAdlg  ‘s3PIIYaA
JO MOJj Ddujesy Juadye pue ajes
UIBjUIEW SDAIJRUIBY|E YIIym 03 3ai18aq

‘paysijowap
2q pjnom sa3pLiq yjog ‘spJepuels usdisap Juaiind
193w 0} sjuawudije Sulsixa aYy3 UO PajINIISUOd
9q p|nom sa3pliq due|-33.Y} MauU oM ]
Y3iH

“Paysijowap aq pjnom sadpliq yiog “Ayjioey
ueuysapad punoqyiiou apnjoul pjnom aspug
‘spJepue)s uBisap JuaLINd 193w 0} PajINIISU0d
3q pjnom a3pliq auel-aA1) 3|3uUls MaU Y
CE]

‘splepueys usdisap
JU3.14N2 333W 0} PajdNJISU0d 3q pjnom 33pLq
1e|NdIYaA auej-aAl ‘d|3uls Mau v "Ajuidajul syt
ulejal pjnom 28pug "23pliq uelysapad e se aA1as
0} paiojsal Ajayenbape x pajeyljigeyas aq pjnom
33p1iq PUNOQY}IOU JO SIIDUIIILIP SIBYISaY
Y3iH

‘spiepueys
uBisap JU31Ind 193W 0} PRIINIISUOI3L 3G P|NOM
28pLq punoqyinos ay] "a8pLiq JejndIyaA ulewas
PINOM Jnq sjuawalinbal peo| 10 spiepueys udisap
JU31IN3 }93W J0U p|NoMm 38pliq PUNoqyIoN
‘Paielljiqeyal aq pjnom
28p1iq punogylou JO S3IIUIIDIBP J11BY1SaY
3}eIaPOIN 03 MO

spiepuejs udisap Juaund
123W  pue  SIPUADYIP  |eINJINIS
ssalppe SaAljeuld)e Ydiym o} 3ai8ag

|eanpnis
pue Ayjjeuopouny

23pug yIeqEwe) anoway
—juawudiy Sunsix3 uo sadpug maN pjing
v 2AREUIRY Y

23pug yoeqawe) anoway
—3uawusijy Man uo aspug map pjing
€ anewA Y

a3pug Yoeqaquue) uejuiepy
—3juawusijy MaN uo aSplig MaN pjing
Z ANeuRY

Juawusiy
SBunsix3 uo saspuig a1elljIqeyay pue 1INsuIAY
T 2AneuR)|Y

SoAlewRl|Y

SJU3WWO)

elA1I) UOREN|BA]

NOILVNTVAT SFNILVYNYFLTV




Okemos Road Bridge Improvement Project

Introduction

An Environmental Assessment (EA) is being undertaken by the Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) to identify and
consider the social, economic, and natural environmental (SEE) impacts of the proposed Okemos Road Bridge Improvement
Project per the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) of 1969. The EA will include:

e The purpose of and need for the project

e The alternatives that were considered as part of the study

e The existing social, economic, and environmental conditions in the project area

e The likely impacts and benefits associated with the Preferred Alternative and the No Build Alternative
e Mitigation measures that would minimize any impacts as the result of the Preferred Alternative

e Consultation and coordination that have been conducted with the public and government agencies

Project Need

Currently the existing northbound camelback bridge is:
1. Functionally obsolete (does not meet current design standards for lane or shoulder width)
2. Structurally deficient. The structural deterioration (delaminated, spalling, and cracking girders, deck, and sidewalls,
and exposed steel) requires vehicle weight restrictions

3. Crossing the Red Cedar River at a skew, resulting in:
a. Bridge abutments protruding into the river channel, disrupting & restricting natural flow of river
b. Abutments susceptible to scour _
c. Higher backwater surface elevations, increasing the potential of upstream flooding.

Currently the existing southbound bridge is:
1. Functionally obsolete (does not meet current design standards for lane or shoulder width)
2. Structurally deficient. The structural deterioration (holes in steel beam, leaking joints, failing paint system, deck
delamination, spalling, and cracking) requires vehicle weight restrictions. The southbound bridge underwent
emergency superstructure repairs in 2016 to keep the bridge open.

Project Purpose and Need

e Primary purposes of the project are to:
v Replace and/or rehabilitate the functionally obsolete and structurally deficient bridges over
the Red Cedar River
v Maintain safe and efficient traffic flow of vehicles, bicycles, and pedestrians

e Secondary purposes of the project are to:
v’ Address the existing undesirable hydraulic conditions relating to bridges’ geometry and
skew in relation to the river channel
v Improve motorized and non-motorized access to Wonch Park and Ferguson Park

~ |




Alternatives Under Consideration

Alternative 1: Reconstruct and Rehabilitate Bridges on Existing Alignment
Alternative 1 includes reconstruction of a new two-lane southbound bridge and rehabilitation of the existing two-lane

northbound bridge. Both bridges would continue to be used for vehicles and the Okemos Road alignment would not
change. The existing pedestrian bridge on the west side of Okemos Road would remain in place.

Alternative 2: Build New Bridge on New Alignment - Maintain Camelback Bridge

Alternative 2 includes construction of a single five-lane bridge to carry both northbound and southbound traffic. Under this
alternative, the southbound bridge would be demolished, and the northbound bridge would be converted for pedestrian
use. The new bridge would consist of two travel lanes in each direction and a center left turn lane to provide left turns in
either directions (i.e., two-way left-turn lane (TWLTL). The existing pedestrian bridge on the west side of Okemos Road
would remain in place. Under this alternative, Meridian Township would be required to take ownership of the northbound
(historic camelback bridge) and would be responsible for future maintenance.

Alternative 3: Build New Bridge on New Alignment — Remove Camelback Bridge
Alternative 3 is the same as Alternative 2 except both existing bridges would be demolished, and five-foot bike lanes with

three-foot buffers would be added to both sides of the new bridge. Additionally, a non-motorized facility would be
incorporated on the east side of the new bridge for a total width of 82 feet.

Alternative 4: Build New Bridges on Existing Alignment — Remove Camelback Bridge

Alternative 4 proposes to replace both bridges on the existing alignments. Under this alternative, the southbound and
northbound bridges would be demolished, and both bridges would consist of two travel lanes in each direction and a left
turn lane. The northbound bridge left turn lane would terminate just north of the bridge at the Wonch Park entrance and
the southbound left turn lane would extend to the Okemos Road/Mt. Hope Road intersection. Additionally, a non-
motorized facility would be incorporated on the east side of the new northbound bridge. The existing pedestrian bridge on
the west side of Okemos Road would remain in place.




APVEE “@c,\,é\,) Ag Lw/ot

)
TA W7 HIEPE C.,_.u& EEAVESIAS S Y]

m~ C o
NAAD ) - _ __Z\G AQ bef"._r.:u_ﬁ//.

1

Waoo- ?or&u. CoRoR D 9 v
P A

J\Q(U a7 29 \w\\.,\ TS~ Lk_: :\ == \(.

0.

\J\\\ &\v\,\).. uJQQ\ 7 ~7 Tsa .VQN\

=T <is

) ey 500
WoD 1 bw 9o QRAVIVYIS2/] ;\\
2] }\.U\, @ va_(a.uvxg JWV

2 n..\< N E e @ 9712007 4 QM

A7 1T @ Sz BAdL

ATy TYWY o) 5L \\\fuv V)
\mﬂ BT RnT) CObhOZ FY\\LJ\J

mﬁo\\{%\v\_‘&m@ A e

ey

ey

rewy

ey

ey

ewy

ey

ey

ey

pewy

ey

qrewy

ey

ey

ey

Jprewy

ey

ey

ey

ARG S EER TN TS

LQ ./<;CP/V v<// w_
\\\\u 7 \\&\ TELP

SOHSO Q¢ PP IS
SCEED I o

Foagvy Iw

:VO/ ulu)\ﬂnv W.b‘wn
SopEg JQ HRIETIVY Sthes

\k %\ N Y

TSSE W o ShL

Sowzy o M \ons&bﬁ\ S ©3E/
S\«\\uv\b 3% Y AT Y

\F AVe) > IA C ¥92/9

Sy HWIAN )5k

. TAEIUNT €55,

rLf.\,..\\N\m\uw .\J\J) RS\QL:Q.

%\T:Q:_ | b

SSAIPPY
ISSAIPPY
ISSAPPY
SS2APPY
1SSAAPPY
1SSAPPY
1SSPPY
1SSAPPY
ISSAPPY
1SSAPPY
ISS2APPY
1SSAAPPY
1SS2APPY
1SS2APPY
1SSAPPY
$S2appY
1SSAAPPY
1$S2APPY

1SSIPPY

AINVN

AINVN

S8 o2 2 =) ‘AWVN

%/& )\/LQ /\& AINVN

M\* .\.L\\Qm&\ A\Qw\ﬁ\\

\V«CQTAT/H( f\.dDJ

EL\YJI&,//\:J? 7/tvLM|H\

=DV ] =N zk\_

T ST

T

A2 Iaaayr= ) 7] .,s.j ;)‘

TS D

ﬂ;.:s./\\um\.\wﬂ / \\»\rﬁ_ﬁ

%_\\.,,u.\.\ P A7

AAMOTY TRXLL L TR _Sjsi

.u@v\m\\,ﬁrﬁwﬁ 577] \n,\\&\v\ bs\ 9 D &

%\1_\\ S

\/: SsY) I32¢

\\Sjm/\ 533%

A TV

TANVYN

CHINVN
AINVN

AINVN

THINVN
AINVN
AINVN
AINVN
CAINVN
AINVYN
AINVN
HINVN

HINVN

AINVYN

AINVN

wooy pieog diysumo] uelpLiap
‘IN*d 00:8-00:% — 6102 ‘St |Mdy
123[0u4 Judwdde|day a8plg peoy sowa O

133HS NI NDIS
ONIL33AN NOILVINHO4NI JInand



ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

Public Information Meeting Comment Sheet
April 25,2019

Please use the space below to provide your comments, thoughts, and ideas on the project. Please submit your
comments in the comment box located near the exit. Attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space.

Pade - ok e Mmos & g I co
Name: L)’NN’L‘. PAG;E. Email: Py e = = b i
Address: 9412 RALEI&H DR
City OKEMOS State: MI_ Zip: ALY 44—
Comments:

THA NG 20U For, PREPARING THIC PRESENTATI OW

T WOULD BE HELPFUL TO HAVE ALl THE POSTERS

AVAILARLE ONLINE

PRE Ly M) NARILY AT FIRST GLANGE L AM 1IN
.) D
FANOR CF ALTERNATWE 4 R THE FOLLOW: NG-

REASONSD &

le PREOGERNATION ©OF MEDIAN GREENSPA CE

2. REMOVAL OF DETERI ORATI NG AMEL BACK -BR IDGE

KEEPIN G TS BRIDGE IN PLACE Ac A PEDESTRIAN

BRIDECE WOULD BE @ VERX cQsTLx FOR THE

TOWNSH 1P TQ MA I NTAIN AND Woulh LEKELY 8E

i DiéREPAlR//UN VOEABLE .

Comments may also be sent to Robert Peterson, P.E., Director of Engineering, Ingham County Road Department,
301 Bush Street, P.O. Box 38, Masan, M| 48854 or rpeterson@ingham.org

***Comments must be received by May 31, 2019 in order to be part of the official EA comment record***




KDLZ

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

Public Information Meeting Comment Sheet
April 25, 2019

Please use the space below to provide your comments, thoughts, and ideas on the project. Please submit your
comments in the comment box located near the exit. Attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space.

Namér—()Q nul S )2\ Cd—\ Email: f’e,k&,r(-c]/, 6{ (44/;@5: , Co 1

Address: ), 19 D REARS 2D /

City: DRIZ ¥4 05 State: /n-T Zip:  KFf ¢

Comments: ///[ﬂ r,"(e' /Ccue47 v L Lbafh ég,/ eve The cn/cﬂ
Cw'm()l. /vdc,/( ér c&me_ 1;’ A7 EHNOVmduD AV"‘M\! 9ol HAlow(S .
70 o Hecail v ple meded F wenld veduc
J/\(— a eV ma iy ¥ fz.’f: S s /n[) e prenles /7L uuuU/. veduce
ﬂ'l . 7() Fo [:Dlé‘lm 'a'{ scrovb /7 o 5/ ) //('} 7}1“‘61&5 /4(‘5 e 14 UGD
Loovn  Hhe bunks & tpe viver bitwees Fuss '/n e

3 b\r\\a\jt? 4.5 b*-’r’[(' as e,/"/m?Hé‘ra VI/wLu‘iaw,;, w27 mec,(ﬁa‘c,,

H

Comments may also be sent to Robert Peterson, P.E., Director of Engineering, Ingham County Road Department,
301 Bush Street, P.O. Box 38, Mason, M| 48854 or rpeterson@ingham.org

***Comments must be received by May 31, 2019 in order to be part of the official EA comment record***




ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

Public Information Meeting Comment Sheet
April 25, 2019

Please use the space below to provide your comments, thoughts, and ideas on the project. Please submit your
comments in,the comment box located nearjthe exit. Attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space.

Name: /ﬂ’//’(’ /’/,4 ME Email:

Address: 7,/ 77 A Seibl

City: /ﬂ/\/é//a State: //'j . Zip: 5/}% ?/

Comments: 4)//€ #4/:

Comments may also be sent to Robert Peterson, P.E., Director of Engineering, Ingham County Road Department,
301 Bush Street, P.O. Box 38, Mason, M| 48854 or rpeterson@ingham.org

***Comments must be received by May 31, 2019 in order to be part of the official EA comment record™**




ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

Public Information Meeting Comment Sheet
April 25, 2019

Please use the space below to provide your comments, thoughts, and ideas on the project. Please submit your
comments in the comment box located near the exit. Attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space.

Name:  (oe s 794 kﬁlﬁ 5 Emailfy rammp (¥ A0 /. com
Address: yj",z‘{ NAkeoritd PR - _
Cty:  OKeEAp< State: A = Zipp ¥5Se 7

Comments: £/, un ! wer e Enme ] bac t b bc_ s a w///uas/o/. i,
‘gkvlfs Can/  Hse f/l"/c/ { 4//:é/ %[ A{/ /4/1/6— a re 5C’
Wz (7[ ("71 fa?:)wn VA Das /7’c/V¢>/ / /;Ls/ Qe & /oS 4/774//
p -~ Va4 / V
W A i ,
<“—:a J_,JZ re - Me_ IL7L A INM U "A«-/J/J ("(//P/
wov Tratlic bLette v Than/ cm/\Z [ lmu/ a‘éu/
ak/en/w{ v

Comments may also be sent to Robert Peterson, P.E., Director of Engineering, Ingham County Road Department,
301 Bush Street, P.O. Box 38, Mason, M| 48854 or rpeterson@ingham.org

***Comments must be received by May 31, 2019 in order to be part of the official EA comment record™***




KDLZ

OKEMOS ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

Public Information Meeting Comment Sheet
April 25, 2019

Please use the space below to provide your comments, thoughts, and ideas on the project. Please submit your
comments in the comment box located near the exit. Attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space.

Name: 'C/Cu‘nve DL AV IS Email: ZJZ{"KL/’A"""’T’S << 5/7 @ Cornttd 7 e
Address: 4&// /é‘\/lﬁ V.a?’n (_A/ﬂ' // cal

City: ((Y/[QM,/V@ / State: 7/ Zip: 5/4(/3) ég[

Comments: (A< Az, /L/VJ{: |_e :/yz ‘ (",/;L/{) /uu‘—&( /7—477{%%
\// ’f J //Va]/t_éj 7/’4( by &% 7‘% Mg . ctoneel -
é P "ﬁ//é & ZL-72 7C« che/v /<_/~’f /J/Cz(// B r,/v

J

?ZL (2 2 léf« CioF J’/ i La‘/// 7{ It g sec e Btd § oy TTA

/ y, A g
AT & () L/?’L-"bé”/?"v// g2l o -

-{/) g //( ¢ ,'l - %,c,b ? L/'f"((:"L,- /}Z a / ‘)/0 2 ) (-'1,/,-:"'-7’( /;Iﬂf/L;,:Z//LLCI/Q{ S
()

P, p— ( ) / _ 7 /'
AU 74/4( [. /L‘- ¢ o L L D ({ \ﬂ
K‘“‘ &’ 0—- ZLL/(/\ .

Comments may also be sent to Robert Peterson, P.E., Director of Engineering, Ingham County Road Department,
301 Bush Street, P.O. Box 38, Mason, M| 48854 or rpeterson@ingham.org

*¥**Comments must be received by May 31, 2019 in order to be part of the official EA comment record™**




KDILZ

OKEMOS ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

Public Information Meeting Comment Sheet
April 25, 2019

Please use the space below to provide your comments, thoughts, and ideas on the project. Please submit your
comments in the comment box located near the exit. Attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space.

Name: 3 (Pl\gg,y\—\]/\\Ja(\\Qf_bQ.’C\ Email: \ \J(‘(/\\.Qf‘“ﬂ Creq é} _(j;y\g.,,/ € Cren
Address: \.]&{,J. SO Tedestene dbr{ué J

City: Lo iqms Fone State: M Zip: 4ygg 75~
Comments:

6«4;;:(/ /7 -A(mo’//uf’ wAg s Tia . /7 P’r” x{// C//) /i J/ v 'f// "LZ&

o ‘
Corcrete  orrcdes af sl te T /7/,«x4'/ // ELTre Vo / Loarbe

/3 /Lc'./a/f(o/ 7z U///r )7 e /"\4&//}//»/7”/ Ster /fr//e,, 6&(/ Zaaz’/
j 7

T

; . / o
LGL’—/’/‘—M) 74/:,1):1/-(/ 53 4.4«4/"7 %/7:] D7 /2{‘7‘4 JH AT o ~

Comments may also be sent to Robert Peterson, P.E., Director of Engineering, Ingham County Road Department,
301 Bush Street, P.O. Box 38, Mason, M| 48854 or rpeterson@ingham.org

***Comments must be received by May 31, 2019 in order to be part of the official EA comment record***




OKEMOS ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

Public Information Meeting Comment Sheet
April 25,2019

Please use the space below to provide your comments, thoughts, and ideas on the project. Please submit your
comments in the comment box located near the exit. Attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space.

VY, / /
Name: /(me \i’C}u Email: (/ / pred (B s altosd, £t
77 4

Address: /«/é;// CK 6477 25

Cty: O e 7205 State: Zp:_ Yfduy
/
o 4 . / P / \
Comments: / //,,,m /Afﬁ'%g 1.2 ,/Zm VAN M/ 74/ %Zf/gg ,/L/f*dl@/ //%/,z,/ﬂ./d
7/ 4 ;/./ / 4 Qz ’
/7 AA) j / __JAse e NS (ilin aq 2 £t aAre
I ) e q.M4.a//o/%/Z7n,r/cﬁ g/h//zz/ P
L{ e K/W@{é /

4? ////1‘14/\ ., O Léa’/(a,/z/g' #3 /4 20 g gfyzz C}//////l/
o, //\/ l,mfwt//iz / /(,/t, 717; L 0L e 14/»/{// Z////dﬂ/{)
kﬂ/z l}{/b@ o ,,44_,;7 /f/ 0. Mﬂ/Zc ~/
// Ao, VA f"7 4 4»4/ CPs e
/n’LMf \/ ?u/Z! Zﬁv%’f/é/ / / / {7 A [ ﬂ /

~ c I ‘ "o, /64 /
S O NI Y C?W/L‘ ) 7.a ﬂ’/é e AL AN JINAT O,
i,

\ / l/ ﬂ /

Comments may also be sent to Robert Peterson, P.E., Director of Engineering, Ingham County Road Department,
301 Bush Street, P.O. Box 38, Mason, M| 48854 or rpeterson@ingham.org

***Comments must be received by May 31, 2019 in order to be part of the official EA comment record™***




From: Kincaid Il, Vance <kincaid@msu.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, June 18, 2019 5:29 PM

To: Conklin, William <WConklin@ingham.org>
Subject: Okemos Road Bridge Project

Bill,

Several Possibilities to Consider:

1. Plan for a possible Roundabout at Okemos Road and Mount Hope Rd. (see image). Could be planned
separate from the bridge.

2. Plan for a possible seven (7) lane bridge with a two (2) lane causeway connector between the Mt. Hope
Rd and Marsh Rd roundabouts on an elevated road surface over the Red Cedar River (see
image). Could be planned separate from the bridge.

3. Plan for a possible five (5) lane bridge configuration that could be converted in the future if the
connector causeway is built to three (3) lanes with the other two (2) lanes dedicated to the connector
route. Could be planned separate from the bridge.

Thank you for the opportunity to submit comments on the Okemos Road Bridge Project.

Vance L Kincaid Il
5175757465



A¥YONNOS T30¥Vd : ONINYYW ININIAVA 03SOd0Yd 8102 Y3BW3AON

og (L3} "zuoH 0
390148 NYI¥1S303d ONILSIX3 I ONINYYW LNINIAYd Q3S0dO¥d e —
WIVM3AIS ONILSIX3 AVAAVOY (3S0d0Yd mmmmmm— (390148 TVOIYOLSIH JAONIY) ‘
INIWNOTIY 3N NO 390148 M3IN G1 LN3IWSSISSY TVINIANOUIANS
VM3AIS 03S0dodd [ NYOM 901G (350d0Yd o £ JALLYNYILIY 103rodd INIWN3FAOQHdNI
aN3931 ‘ £ 3WN9Id _ 390148 dvOoy SOW3NO0

A oA

»

R ibvd Nosnow3d

2

=

L |MT. HOPE ROAD |




L/

00~

200~

OG- = 800

ARIMBSNET PEOY SOWEHO=2 1T AIFAGaPI/0-007 8-00 4 #-0P Li-2a+aE pr=abe i, adeaspueijuld/rpe nsu sif aruonezijenba-tueyfu)

puRy AuE Jo ALNVEYYM LNOHLIM pue Aluo aousiaal Joj paplaodd si ejep ay] s uepssiq

Jamaip Burddey xel uogezienbg Ajunod) weydu) slLOZ/2L/9



Meridian Transportation Commission
Follow-up Questions from Commissioners
May 23, 2019

Redi-Ride:
1. Total number of trips on RR from 14:00-15:00 and 15:00-16:00 broken out by rider type.
Included in PDF

2. Ridership data for same time period at five extended locations (pickups and drop offs).
Included in PDF

3. Ridership data for each school. Included in PDF

4. Pie chart showing rider type for 14:00 to 16:00 M-F during same timeframe (Aug 2018 — Apr
2019). Included in PDF
a. Same for 7:30-9:00, M-F Included in PDF
b. Same for 17:00-18:30 Included in PDF

5. Delhivs. Meridian pie chart of rider type and number rides for 7:00 a.m. - 9:00 a.m. (start of
service) during August 2018 through April 2019 timeframe. Included in PDF

6. Any indication people want earlier rides? Say 6:30-7:00?
a. Merit to ending service at 18:00 but starting at 6:30?
CATA has not heard from customers that they wish service would begin earlier in Meridian. This
is something we would be willing to explore at a later date in conjunction with the Township.

Other:
7. Ridership (fiscal year okay) for fixed routes in Township (1, 22, 23, 24, 48).

Route Name and Number FY 18 Total
01 D-town Lansing/Meridian Mall 1,499,104
22 MSU/Haslett/Meridian Mall 139,073
23 MSU/Okemos/Meridian Mall 135,673
24 E Lansing/E Lake Lansing Rd 172,163
48 Williamston/Webberville Limited 8,327

8. Top 5 busiest stops for fixed route service in Township.
i. Meridian Mall
ii. Meijer- Okemos
iii. Grand River Avenue (westbound), west of mall entrance
iv. Grand River Avenue (eastbound), east of Northwind Drive
v. Okemos Road (northbound), at Kewanee Way (just south of Mount Hope)

Page 1of1



610/01/90

sisAipuy diysIapty ap1y Ip3y UDIpLAN

8T LLT 991 60¢¢ TSET |e101

9 16 9§ 8¢l 019 00:9T-T0:ST

CT 98 OoTtT LT8 L 00:ST-00:7T
99.4 npy sioluas Yinoa sanijiqesiq /m suosiad awiy

6T0¢ ‘0€ 14dy-8T0T ‘LT 1sn3ny diysiopiy apiy Ipay uelpliaAl




Meridian Redi-Ride Extended Locations Ridership
August, 2018 through April, 2019

Location Drop Offs Pick Ups Total

College Fields 0 0 0
EL Aquatic Cntr 0 0 0
Costco 3 1 4
MSU Clinical 43 39 82

Meijer Bath 203 202 405



6T0Z/0T/90

L RESES 7 sdu} pajejas [00YdS YYIAI [BI0L
0 [00YdS 3|PPIN 13|SeH
T Anuaws|z poopn 112UUag
€ Aiejuswalg Aydany
6 |ooyds ysiH 1ajseH
SS Aiejuawag eAjey
8S Asequawajz aaysyjim
vL [o0Y2s s,eyHBA IS
[4-34 Airejuawaj3 |jpui0)
(44" Aiejuswajz poomasp3y
STE [BJ3Ud) 1B 1I0SSAIUOIA] 31|gNd SowdO-Alejusawal] |edjua)
€95 [ooyas a|pp!A emaddiy)
LT9 Arejuswa|z eypemery
S99 |ooyas y3iH sowao
veS |ooYy2s a|ppIAl EMmauly
S uddersdug) e

6102°0€ "4dy- 8T0Z ‘LT "8ny ude[ sdii] |00YIS apIy-Ipay UelpLBIN




610T ‘0T aunf

%b

%0
o slojuas

EETE| %S
SSpIY Ip3y INpY

00:9T-00-¥T "144-"UOIA

610 ‘ ‘1dv- ‘ .
C ‘0€ *1dy-8102 ‘27 "8ny 9dA] 198uassed Aq apiy-1pay uelplIdN




610Z/01/90

%9
siojuag

%0
EETE|

%z
sap1y Ipay NPy

00:60-0€:£0 "M4-"UOA

6T0T ‘0€ "1dy-810¢ ‘LT "8ny adA] 123uassed Aq diysiapiy apiy-1pay uelplIan




610Z/01/90

%6
sio1uas

%0
EETE|

0€:8T-00-LT "144-"UOAI

6T0C ‘0€ "4dy-810¢ ‘L2 *Sny adA ] 1a8uassed Aq diysiapiy apiy-1pay ueiplisiAl




Meridian Redi-Ride Ridership by Passenger Type
Aug. 27, 2018-Apr. 30, 2019 Mon-Fri 07:30-09:00

Adult Redi Rides, 19 Free' 1

Seniors, 45

Youth, 335

Delhi Redi-Ride Ridership by Passenger Type
Aug. 27, 2018-Apr. 30, 2019 Mon-Fri 07:00-09:00

Free, 19

Seniors , 48

\

Youth, 1891

06/10/2019




Meridian Redi-Ride Ridership by Passenger Type
Aug. 27, 2018-Apr. 30, 2019 Mon-Fri 07:30-09:00

Adult Redi Rides Free
2% 0%

Seniors
6%

Youth
41%

Delhi Redi-Ride Ridership by Passenger Type
Aug. 27, 2018-Apr. 30, 2019 Mon-Fri 07:00-09:00

Seniors Free
2% ’

() 9/

06/10/2019




6102 +T°90 p230pdn

6107 ‘T€ ABN-8TOT ‘LT 3NNy

%ET
sJojuas

9dA] s128uassed

6T0T ‘TE AelN-8T0¢ ‘£ "Snv adA] 1a8uassed Aq diysiapry apiy-ipay uelpudn




SUIM aJ12Yy21W 610Z/%1/90 pa1opdp
€S2 %Z'9 €971 %6'L1 629¢€ %VT0 62 %SL0 IST ¥220¢ [e10]
9¢ %909 eer %0°8T ¥6¢& %600 (4 %890 ST €61¢ 6T-AeN
9¢ %68'S 911 %9°LT 9¥vE %S00 T %0€°0 9 8961 61-1dy
97 %T16'L TLT %8°LT G8¢€ %€T0 S %9S°0 (A" 191¢ 61-1e]N
¥ %90°8 L9T %11 LEY %0T°0 ré %€9°0 o ! cL0? 61-9°4
€¢ %L9’S 1Z1 %6'9¢ VLS %S0°0 T %¥8'0 81 GETC 61-uef
S¢C %129 0C1 %71'ST L6C %9T1°0 € %880 LT €eol 81-2°d
YA %219 | ¥4 %LLT 0s¢E %0¢€°0 9 %9L0 a1 9L61 8T-AON
LZ %¥ES 611 %0 %1 Zle %¥0°0 | 8 %¥6'0 | &4 L22¢ 81-1°0
44 %S8% 6 %091 €0¢e %ZcV'0 8 %TIT'T | ¥4 L68T 81-das
LZ %029 €01 %6°'ET TEC %00°0 0 %8L'0 €1 ¢991 81-sny
..—ﬁ.v W%NQO ON % S ON I 2% S[PIUED Se sjesnjoy juaipn 0] sjerua(g PECED WQ_hr—. [e10], U
a1 Aoede) yo %

sisA[euy suryjooq apry-1pay drysumo ], ueIpLidy 6107 AeN-8107 Sny




6102/v1/90 pa3opdn

sjeiuap Ajoeded pue smoys-ou ‘sjpaued ‘uaye) sduy ‘payooq sdiy SapN|oul SUSWIDUL INoY Jey uj diysiaply SINOH Papualx3 aply-1pay UeIpLBIA

€ z S ¥ 8 8 sjeluaq -ded s
8z ST 6 6C Ly €S SMOYS ON M
4 15 vIT 68 6 11T sjaaue)
L6 08T zIe Y43 ozv S19 usxel sdulm

0ST 8¥C 08Y LvY 695 L8L payoog sdiiL M
0€:81-T0:8T 00:8T-TE:LT 0€:£T-00:LT 00:60-TE:80 0€:80-10:80 00:80-0€:£0
0
) A
“ B | #
L~
| oot
|
\
=
| 00z
el
L]
s
00€
¢ %
Lo =
\ 1
=
~| oot &
A )
- =
] 5
—| 00s
L]
i
5]
| 009
2|
ST9 L
=
| ooz
L~
P
el
8.~ 008

™~

6T0T ‘TE AN- 810 ‘LT "Sny dIYsIopry sINoH papuslxy apry-1pay UeIpLId|y




610/v1/90 sishjpuy diysiaply aply 1pay upiplaN
"polad swil siy3 Sulinp spiy-1pay UeIpLBIA Uo jooyds 1e Jjo paddoup Jo/pue dn paydid aiam syuapnis 9z Jo adetane Ajleq
4 TS (0]0) 74 LEOT 8¢ €C6S |10l
S LE 9€tC €LS (01544 18¢C¢E 00:9T-TO:ST
4 14" 79T vov 8661 (47X 00:ST-00:1T
sjesnjay sjeiuag-de) SMOYs-oN s|j@aue) uayel payoog sdii] awi]

6T0C ‘TE AeIN-8T0C ‘£T "Sny diysiapiy apiy 1pay uelpldA




6102/v1/90

sisfjpuy diysiapty aply 1pay ubIpLAN

0 0 1T (44 17 6L |eloL

0 0 0 0 0 0 0€8T-TO:8T

0 0 1T (44 9 6L 00:8T-00:LT
sjesnjoy sjeiuaqg-de) SMOYS-oN s|joaue) uayel pa)oog sdiil awil

% 1T /L1 9CT €eL 676 |elol

T 14 43 YL T4 LEE 00:60-T0:80

T L (37 4 80S 19 00:80-0€:£0
sjesnjoy sjeius@-de) SMOYS-ON s|j@aue) uayel payjoog sduj awi]

670 ‘T€ AeIN-8TOT ‘LT

*8ny sanoH papuaix3 diysiapiy 3usapnis apiy 1pay UeIPUBIA




